BRISBANE PLANNING COMMISSION

Action Minutes of October 28, 2021 Virtual Regular Meeting

CALL TO ORDER

Chairperson Gooding called the meeting to order at approximately 7:35 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Commissioners Funke, Gooding, Gomez, Patel, and Sayasane

Absent: None

Staff Present: Director Swiecki, Senior Planner Johnson, Contract Senior Planner Kelly Beggs,

and Associate Planner Robbins

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Commissioner Funke moved to adopt the agenda. Commissioner Sayasane seconded the motion and it was approved 5-0.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Commissioner Patel moved to adopt the consent calendar (agenda item A). Commissioner Gomez seconded the motion and it was approved 5-0.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

There were no oral communications.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

Chairperson Gooding acknowledge two letters were received pertaining to agenda item C.

NEW BUSINESS

B. PUBLIC HEARING: 3435 Bayshore Blvd; Interim Use Permit 2021-UP-5; C-1 Commercial Mixed Use (Baylands); Proposed Interim Use Permit to establish a non-commercial tree nursery on approximately 3.5 acres of vacant land adjacent to the existing Mission Plant Nursery for a term not to exceed 5 years. Eric Aronsohn, applicant; Tuntex USA Inc. (Baylands Development Inc.), owner.

Senior Planner Johnson gave the staff presentation and answered questions from the Commission regarding the proposed nursery's water usage and its relationship to the adjacent and existing Mission Blue Nursery.

Brisbane Planning Commission Minutes October 28, 2021 Page 2

Chairperson Gooding opened the public hearing.

Eric Aronsohn, applicant, addresses the Commission and answered question about leveraging resources from Mission Blue Nursery, the types of trees expected to be grown at the nursery, and the timing of growing trees for the Baylands at the proposed location.

Barbara Ebel, Brisbane resident, spoke in favor of the project but raised concerns about the project's water usage.

Michele Salmon, Brisbane resident, spoke in favor of the project but raised concerns about nearby seasonal wetlands and invasive flora onsite.

Mary Rogers, Brisbane resident, raised concerns about lighting and potential benefits to Brisbane residents, if any.

Jason Nunan, spoke in favor or the project but raised concerns about non-native tree species being grown at the nursery.

With no others wishing to address the Commission, Commissioner Patel moved to close the public hearing. Commissioner Funke seconded the motion and it was approved 5-0.

After deliberation, Commissioner Funke moved to approve the application via adoption of 2021-UP-5 with an additional condition that prior to the applicant commencing operations, the limits of the seasonal wetlands shall be verified by a qualified biologist to ensure the interim use does not encroach upon the wetlands. Commissioner Gomez seconded the motion and it was approved 5-0.

C. PUBLIC HEARING: 600 Tunnel Avenue; Interim Use Permit 2021-UP-3; C-1 Commercial Mixed Use (Baylands); Proposed Interim Use Permit for the continued staging of up to 90 Google commuter buses on an approximately 3-acre site between Tunnel Avenue and the Caltrain rail line to serve Google employees on the peninsula for up to a 5-year term. Sam Khodja, applicant; Oyster Point Properties, Inc. (Baylands Development Inc.), owner.

Senior Planner Johnson informed the Commission that the applicant has requested to continue this item to the next scheduled meeting to discuss proposed conditions of approvals with staff.

Director Swiecki added that while the applicant's current interim use permit will expire before the next meeting, the use may continue until the Planning Commission acts on this item and they will be subject to the boundaries and conditions under the existing interim use permit.

Chairperson Gooding opened the public hearing.

Mary Rogers, Brisbane resident, spoke against the project.

Brisbane Planning Commission Minutes October 28, 2021 Page 3

Michele Salmon, Brisbane resident, spoke against the project.

Kim Follien, Brisbane resident, spoke in favor of the project provided the lot is paved and lighting is properly shielded.

Barbara Ebel, Brisbane resident, spoke in favor of the project provided the applicant follow through on mitigating dust and glare and provide the route and trip data per the new recommended conditions of approval.

Chairperson Gooding closed the public hearing and Commissioner Funke moved to continue the application to the next Planning Commission meeting of November 16, 2021. Commissioner Gomez seconded the motion and it was approved 5-0.

D. **PUBLIC HEARING: Zoning Text Amendment 2021-RZ-2**; Various zoning districts; Zoning text amendments to Title 17 of the Brisbane Municipal Code to City of Brisbane to establish objective design and development standards for housing development projects; establish residential density requirements for the NCRO-2 Zoning District; allow multiple family dwellings in the SCRO-1 District by right and multiple family dwellings as part of a mixed use in the NCRO-2 Zoning District by right; reduce guest parking requirements; and establish procedures and requirements for an administrative Housing Development Permit for qualifying housing development projects. City of Brisbane, applicant; Citywide.

Director Swiecki introduced Contract Senior Planner Beggs.

Contract Senior Planner Beggs and project consultants Aaron Aknin and Nicholas Hamilton of Good City gave the staff presentation and answered questions about the criteria for certain development regulations, including step-backs, which zoning districts are impacted by the proposed amendments, the timing of approval required by the State, and if additional visualization and/or simulation materials of the proposed amendments could be provided.

The Commission asked staff and the consultants to further explain the proposed reduction in guest parking, including how the proposed standard was determined and whether the Housing and Community Development (HCD) would permit Brisbane to retain its current and more stringent standard.

Director Swiecki explained the State views parking as a constraint on housing availability and is regulating municipalities to reduce governmental constraints. Mr. Akin further indicated that HCD's review will include ensuring the feasibility of the proposed amendments are not financially burdensome, i.e., a limiting factor to the construction of housing, and leaving the guest parking standard unchanged may necessitate a subsequent change in the future.

Commissioners Funke and Gooding requested clarification on the approval process for new mixeduse and multifamily projects and the role of the Zoning Administrator. Director Swiecki informed the Commission that without any discretionary standards, the Zoning Administrator's role is to Brisbane Planning Commission Minutes October 28, 2021 Page 4

confirm compliance with all applicable objective standards and listen to any comments raised by the community. He assured the Commission that new projects would still be noticed to adjacent parcels and comments or concerned raised by the public can be presented at a Zoning Administrator public hearing.

Chairperson Gooding opened the public hearing.

Barbara Ebel, Brisbane resident, spoke about making a compromise on the proposed guest parking reduction. She also requested staff highlight what proposed amendments are discretionary, what issues are not, and what changes are required by the State.

Michele Salmon, Brisbane resident, spoke against the project.

Commissioner Funke moved to continue the public hearing and application to the next Planning Commission meeting of November 16, 2021. Commissioner Gomez seconded the motion and it was approved 5-0.

ITEMS INITIATED BY STAFF

Associate Planner Robbins advertised an upcoming ADU webinar hosted by Second Unit Resources Center.

Senior Planner Johnson advertised 21 Element's third workshop on "Housing in a Climate of Change."

ITEMS INITIATED BY THE COMMISSION

There were none.

ADJOURNMENT

With the cancellation of the November 11, 2021 meeting, Chairperson Gooding declared the meeting adjourned to the next special meeting of November 16, 2021. The meeting adjourned at approximately 10:05 p.m.

Attest:

John Swiecki, Community Development Director

NOTE: A full video record of this meeting can be found on the City's YouTube channel at www.youtube.com/BrisbaneCA, on the City's website at http://www.brisbaneca.org/meetings, or on DVD (by request only) at City Hall.